CITY OF HANOVER
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MAY 23, 2022
OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

Stan Kolasa called the May 23, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm. Members present
were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Dean Kuitunen, Gretchen Barrett, and John Ganfield. Also present City
Planner Cindy Nash, Council Liaison Jim Zajicek and Administrative Assistant Amy Biren. Guest were
present.

Approval of Agenda
MOTION by Schendel to approve the amended agenda, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Approval of Minutes from the March 28, 2022, Regular Meeting
MOTION by Schendel to approve the March 28, 2022, minutes, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum
None

Public Hearing
Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance Related to Shoreland Management

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:01 pm.

Nash reminded the Board that they had reviewed the amendments previously, but the Minnesota
Department of Natural Resources (MN DNR) needed to review it. She reviewed it for the newer members.
Hanover has always had a shoreland management ordinance, but discrepancies were noticed between what
was in the Hanover ordinance and the regulations outlined by the MN DNR. Changes had been approved
16 years ago, but never at the MN DNR level. The ordinance now matches the State’s rules.

Schendel and Kuitunen both asked if any changes had been suggested since the last review. Nash confirmed
that there were not. She added that once a final review by the MN DNR was completed, it would go to the
Council for final approval.

There was no public comment.

Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission meeting at 7:05 pm.

MOTION by Kuitunen to move the amendments to the Shoreland Management Ordinance forward to the
City Council with the recommendation for approval, seconded by Barrett.

Motion carried unanimously.

Unfinished Business
None



New Business
Discussion of Site Plan at 10940-10980 4™ Street, Big Bore Barbecue

Nash explained that staff is not looking for a recommendation tonight as there are variances for which the
owner needs to submit applications. The comment memaos are preliminary as the engineer did not have the
ability to fully review the plans. The owner is looking for feedback from the Planning Commission to add
to the application.

Kuitunen asked how the property will be impacted by the future CSAH 19 redevelopment project and how
it will impact the parking lot. Nash replied that because the plans for the highway redevelopment are only
in the draft stages, the owner of Big Bore Barbecue is asking for the parking lot not to be paved until after
the highway is completed. In the meantime, the parking lot would be established using dustless materials.

Barrett asked what would happen if the timeline for the highway project is delayed. Nash responded that
possibility would be part of the written agreement. The City Attorney would also be included in the
conversation and creation of the agreement. Chad Brink, owner of Big Bore Barbecue, stated that he does
not want to create a parking lot where everything is in place and then the County cuts it apart because of
the highway project. He would rather not have to construct the parking lot twice.

Nash continued saying that the highway project has a roundabout in the vicinity of the entrances of 4" and
5t Street so it is not the typical highway reconstruction where the owner would be able to go ahead with
the parking lot.

Kuitunen said that the design looks good, but the design of the roundabout also needs to be taken into
consideration. He added the owner had taken the initiative to purchase additional land as a solution to
meeting parking requirements.

MOTION by Schendel to table the discussion of the site plan at 10940-10980 4" Street until the June
meeting, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Concept Plan at 11262 Crow River Drive Ne and 11279 River Road NE

Nash explained that the concept plan for a subdivision in the downtown area is separate from the site plan
at the River Inn.

She continued explaining that Rick and Jodi Tappe have purchased a property at 11201 Church Street and
would like to move it to the property at 11262 Crow River Drive which is made up of two parcels. In order
to do that, a garage would also need to be constructed to be a compliant property. Working with the owners
of 11279 River Road, they are presenting a concept plan of the three parcels.

Nash noted that on the proposed concept plan, variances are indicated which would be needed. Her
suggestion is for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) application which would address these issues. The
PUD would be an overlay of the areas not meeting current standards. Some of the property lines would be
cleaned up, particularly where the existing garage is located on the property line; and there would be
dedicated public right away on River Road where current property lines go into the road.

Nash said that staff is looking for feedback from the Planning Commission.

Nash reminded the Board that a number of the variances are existing conditions that will remain whether
or not the project goes forward.

Kolasa agreed that it would clean up the street.



Schendel asked if this redevelopment could be legally done as a PUD as he wants to make sure it doesn’t
appear to be spot zoning. Nash replied that it could be a PUD as it is three parcels. Schendel said that it
did make sense.

Scott Dahlke, engineer for the applicant, said they are trying to make the best of what there is to work with.
He went on saying that they tried to get to the 12,000 square foot minimum lot size and as near as possible
to the 15,000 square foot corner lot minimum as possible. The rezoning of the parcel from single-family
residential, R-1, to multi-family residential, R-2, is necessary for multiple renters at the 11262 Crow River
Drive property. Schendel asked if the eastern parcel at 11262 Crow River Drive had water and sewer stubs.
Dahlke replied there is access.

Kuitunen asked if there were any problems with rezoning the property. Nash replied not at this moment,
but a public hearing will be needed and there may be comments at that time which need to be addressed.

Nash reminded the Board that the PUD gives them exceptions for very specific things and the current
standards still apply for everything else.

Jodi Tappe, owner and applicant, explained that when they purchased the property on Church Street, they
really wanted to keep the house there and move the detached garage onto the River Inn property and use it
in their expansion. They found out that once the garage was moved, it made the property noncompliant as
it would not have the required garage. She said that this is a better choice than demolishing the house.

Nash explained that the concept plan will not be going forward to Council for approval as the applicant
needs to submit all the materials for the June Planning Commission meeting by Friday, May 27, 2022.

Nash said that she did receive a phone call from a neighbor on Crow River Drive in support of the project,
but had some concerns with the illegal parking that was occurring on River Road and Crow River Drive.
The neighbor worried about emergency vehicles getting through and the difficulty of the visibility triangle
being blocked by vehicles.

Zajicek said that the plan looks really good. He said the parking issue can be solved with a yellow curb
and ticketing illegal parked vehicles.

Barrett asked about downtown parking. Nash responded that the concept plan for this project was a separate
project. Downtown parking would be addressed in a separate application.

Reports and Announcements

Nash said that the Planning Commission should be prepared for a longer June meeting as there
were several items already for the agenda: the concept plan presented tonight; the expansion of the River
Inn; a variance for a Rivers Edge property; an amendment and rezoning for the Fehn Pit; and the possibility
of a preliminary plat for the Anderson Farm.

Biren explained the process for new construction residential builds and the release of escrows
related to landscaping, erosion and infrastructure. She also provided the dates for the Concert in the Park
series this summer with the first concert being June 8" with Church of Cash.

Schendel mentioned the constant garbage coming from Rivers Edge. Biren said that she is in
contact with the site managers weekly asking them to pick up the garbage.

Kuitunen said that some of the trees along River Road planted by the Rivers Edge developer need
to be replaced since they have died. Biren said that she would contact the appropriate people. Kuitunen
also asked about the 8" Street issue with standing water. Biren said that it would be corrected per the
engineer when the final lift was put on 8" Street. She did not know when this would be happening.

Barrett asked about additional stormwater pond maintenance and if additional trees would be
removed. Biren said that she asked Jason Doboszenski, Public Works Supervisor, about it. He said that
the ground was too soft when they were working on the ponds in the Bridges at Hanover and they needed
to wait. Since the ponds in that neighborhood do not have a dedicated access, they would need to use the



drainage and utility easements of the properties to get in the ponds. They did not want to access the ponds
when it was too wet.

Zajicek asked if staff could ask the City of St. Michael to limit the Saturday hours in the gravel pit
located north of 15" Street. Nash said she does not feel they would be inclined to do that. She added that
most gravel pits allow hauling to take place on Saturdays, but no mining. Schendel concurred saying that
Saturday hours sometime make up for rain days during the week.

Adjournment

MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 7:59 pm.

ATTEST:

Amy L. Biren
Administrative Assistant



